
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE:  April 17, 2024 
TIME:  9:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Polk County Courthouse, Dallas, Oregon 
 

THE LOCATION OF THIS MEETING IS ADA ACCESSIBLE. PLEASE ADVISE THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS AT (503-623-8173), AT LEAST 24 HOURS IN ADVANCE, OF ANY SPECIAL 

ACCOMMODATIONS NEEDED TO ATTEND OR TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIRTUALLY. 

 
PAGE:         AGENDA ITEMS 
 
  1. CALL TO ORDER AND NOTE OF ATTENDANCE 

  
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
(a) Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 

Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principal 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, the Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda.  The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00am on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon. 
 
 

 
 

  3. COMMENTS (for items not on this agenda and limited to 3 minutes) 

  4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM April 3, 2024 

  6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR 

  7. LENGTH OF SERVICE AWARDS – Matt Hawkins 

• Jay Schmoyer – 25 years 

• Jaime Cantu – 20 years 

• Molly Barth – 15 years 

• Morgan Smith – 10 years 

  8. MORRIS ROAD VACATION DELIBERATION & ORDER NO. 24-03  

  9. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE – Matt Hawkins 

 
 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
        

(a) Polk County Ordinance No. 24-02, Amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinances 
Chapters 136 and 177 
(Michael Burns, community Development) 

     
 

 

 

                              THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS WILL MEET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 PURSUANT TO ORS 192.660. 
 
  ADJOURNMENT 

    
 
    
 
 



 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MINUTES April 3, 2024  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & ATTENDANCE 

At 9:00 a.m., Commissioner Pope declared the meeting of the Polk County Board of Commissioners 
to be in session. Commissioner Mordhorst and Commissioner Gordon were present. 
 
Staff present: Greg Hansen, Administrative Officer 
  Morgan Smith, County Counsel 
  Matt Hawkins, Administrative Services Director 
          
2. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners are held on Tuesday and Wednesday each week. 
Each meeting is held in the Courthouse Conference Room, 850 Main Street, Dallas, Oregon. Each 
meeting begins at 9:00 a.m. and is conducted according to a prepared agenda that lists the principle 
subjects anticipated to be considered. Pursuant to ORS 192.640, The Board may consider and take 
action on subjects that are not listed on the agenda. The Board also holds a department staff meeting 
at 9:00 a.m. on every Monday in the Commissioners Conference Room at 850 Main Street, Dallas, 
Oregon.  
 
A public meeting of the Budget Committee for Polk County will be held in the Main Conference Room, 
Polk County Courthouse, 9:00 a.m., on Tuesday, April 9, 2024. The purpose of the meeting is to 
discuss the budget for fiscal year July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 and to receive the budget message 
and document. The public meeting will continue on Wednesday, April 10, 2024. Additional time is 
reserved for public comment at 10:30 a.m. Wednesday, April 10, 2024. A copy of the budget 
document may be inspected or obtained on or after April 5, 2024 at the Board of Commissioners' 
Office, Polk County Courthouse, during regular business hours. This is a public meeting where 
deliberation of the Budget Committee will take place. Any person may appear at the meeting and 
discuss the proposed budget with the Budget Committee. Please advise the Board of Commissioners 
(503-623-9237) at least 24 hours in advance if you need special accommodations to attend or 
participate in the meeting virtually. 
 
Polk County is completing a Polk County Food Delivery project funded with Community Development 
Block Grant funds from the Oregon Business Development Department. The location of the project 
is: Rural Polk County. It is estimated that the project has benefited at least 2748 adults and 1464 
children of whom 100% are low or moderate income. A public hearing will be held by the Polk County 
Board of Commissioners at The Polk County Courthouse in the Main Conference Room on April 16th 
at 9:00 am. The purpose of the hearing is for the Polk County Board of Commissioners to obtain 
citizens' views about the project and to take comments about the local government’s performance. 
Written comments are also welcome and must be received by 5:00 pm on April 15th at 850 Main St. 
Dallas OR 97338. Both oral and written comments will be reviewed by the Polk County Board of 
Commissioners. The location of the hearing is accessible to the disabled. Please let Nicole Pineda at 
503-623-0896 know if you need any special accommodations to attend or participate in the hearing. 
More information about the Oregon Community Development Block Grant program and the project is 
available for public review at The Polk County Courthouse during regular office hours. Advance notice 
is requested. 
Segundo Aviso de Audiencia Pública  
El condado de Polk está completando un proyecto de Entrega de Alimentos de parte del condado de 
Polk, financiado con fondos de Community Development Block Grant, del departamento Oregon 
Business Development. La ubicación del proyecto es en el área rural del condado de Polk. Se estima 
que el proyecto ha beneficiado a por lo menos 2,748 adultos y 1,464 menores de los cuales el 100% 
son de bajos ingresos o ingresos moderados. Se realizará una audiencia pública por la Junta De 
Comisarios del Condado De Polk en el Tribunal Del Condado de Polk en la sala de conferencias 
principal el 16 de April a las 9:00 am. El propósito de la audiencia es para que la Junta de Comisarios 
del Condado de Polk obtenga comentarios y opiniones sobre el proyecto y la actuación de parte del 
gobierno local. Los comentarios escritos son bienvenidos y deben ser recibidos a más tardar el 15 
de Abril a las 5:00 pm en 850 Main St. Dallas, OR 97338. Los comentarios orales y escritos serán 
revisados por la Junta de Comisarios del Condado de Polk.La ubicación de la audiencia es accesible 



April 3, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  

a personas discapacitadas. Favor de informarle a Nicole Pineda al 503-623-0896 si necesita alguna 
adaptación especial para asistir o participar en la audiencia. Más información sobre el programa 
Oregon Community Development Block Grant y del proyecto están disponibles para el reviso público 
en el Tribunal del Condado de Polk durante horas regulares de oficina. Se pide aviso previo. Gracias 
 

 
3. COMMENTS 

Mandy Strauss provided public comment in regards to personnel investigations. Next, Mrs. 
Strauss wanted to address the annual report for the Sheriff’s Office and she pointed out some 
discrepancies in the report.  
 
K. Jane Phillips wanted to provide public comment in regards to a matter of an obstruction in a 
county road. Ms. Phillips stated there is a large re-election sign currently in the right of way 
(ROW.) 

 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER MORDHORST MOVED, COMMISSIONER GORDON 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA. 

 
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD.  
 
5.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF BOARD MEETING OF March 27, 2024 
 

MOTION:  COMMISSIONER GORDON MOVED, COMMISSIONER MORDHORST 
SECONDED, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF March 27, 2024. 

      
    MOTION PASSED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THE BOARD. 
 
 
 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – ORDER NO. 24-03 / VACATING A PORTION OF MORRIS ROAD 

Darren Blackwell. Polk County Surveyor, provided a brief summary of the road officials report 
and stated that in his assessment he found that the approval of the vacation of a portion of 
Morris Road is in the interest of Polk County. Mr. Blackwell provided background information 
on the public hearing that was held in 2023 to for the first vacation of a portion of Morris Road. 
Mr. Blackwell is recommending that the Board approve and sign Polk County Order No. 24-03, 
In the Matter of vacating a portion of Morris Road. Commissioner Mordhorst asked if he had 
any idea of when it was last utilized and Mr. Blackwell stated most likely in the late 1950’s or 
early 1960’s.  

Commissioner Pope opened the public hearing to public comment at 9:14 a.m. 

Pat Wildman provided public comment in favor of the road vacation and Order No. 24-03 and 
stated her reasons why.  

Rich Moore provided public comment in favor of the road vacation and Order No. 24-03 and 
stated his reasons why.  

Jeff Havlin provided public comment in favor of the road vacation and Order No. 24-03 and 
stated his reasons why.  



April 3, 2024 
Page 3 

 

  

Penny Cox provided public comment in opposition of the road vacation and Order No. 24-03 
and stated her reasons why. 

K. Jane Phillips provided public comment in opposition of the road vacation and Order No. 24-
03 and stated her reasons why.  

David Heventall provided public comment in opposition of the road vacation and Order No. 24-
03 and stated his reasons why.  

 

         Commissioner Pope closed the hearing to public comment at 9:52 a.m. 

The Board discussed whether or not to keep the record open for 7 days. They all agreed to 
keep the record open for 7 days, until April 10th, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. and then to redeliberate on 
the April 17th, 2024. 

 
 
 
7. POLK COUNTY SHERIFF UPDATE 

   Mark Garton, Polk County Sheriff, provided a department update to the Board and staff. The 
Sheriff notified the Board that there has been an update from the Oregon Humane Society and 
stated that he would forward an email to the Board that was received late yesterday. Next, the 
Sheriff talked about an event for boat inspections that are going to be made available to the 
public at the end of the month to help prepare for the warmer months. The sheriff went over 
their current staffing levels and he also provided some information on a couple current cases 
that are investigating. Next, he stated that the jail will be installing 16 food ports into some of 
the doors and that two thirds of those costs will be covered by CIS, their insurance provider. 
The Commissioners thanked the Sheriff for the update. 

 
 
8. RECLASSIFICATION OF AN EMPLOYEE 

Matt Hawkins, Admin Services Director, is recommending the reclassification of an 
employee from a Community Resource Connector II to a Resource Navigator. Should the 
reclassification be approved, it would be effective April 1, 2024 and have an approximate 
fiscal impact of $9,100 for FY23-24 including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months. 
  
 
 APPROVED BY CONSENSUS OF THE BOARD. 

  
 
 
 
 
The following items were approved by Motion under 5. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR: 
                                        N/A 

 
 
There no need for an executive session and Commissioner Pope adjourned the meeting 
at 10:01 a.m. 
 
 



April 3, 2024 
Page 4 

 

  

 

  
POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
       

        

 Craig Pope, Chair   
 
 

                                                       
    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 

        
                 
         
         Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 
 
 
 
 
Minutes: Nicole Pineda  
Approved: April 10, 2024 



 1 

 2 

 3 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR 4 

POLK COUNTY, OREGON 5 

 6 

In the Matter of vacating a portion of Morris Road ) 7 

See Exhibit “A”, “B” and "C".                                 ) 8 

                                                         ) 9 

 10 

ORDER NO. 24-03 11 

 12 

 WHEREAS, The Polk County Board of Commissioners have adopted a resolution to vacate a 13 

portion of Morris Road (CR 7501), originally known as the C. W. Pewtherer Change to John Morris Road, 14 

more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” and "C"; and 15 

 16 

 WHEREAS, this matter came before a regularly scheduled public hearing on April 3, 2024; and 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, Public Works has recommended that a portion of Morris Road, described in Exhibit 19 

“A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” and "C" be vacated; and 20 

 21 

WHEREAS, it appearing to the board that it is in the best interest of the public to vacate the said  22 

portion of Morris Road, described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B” and "C"; and 23 

 24 

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was posted and all owners of abutting property affected 25 

by the vacations were notified of the public hearing; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, ORS 368.326 to 368.366 specifies the procedure for vacation of County property; 28 

now, therefore, 29 

 30 

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 31 

 32 

(1) That a portion of Morris Road, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit 33 

“B” and "C" be vacated. 34 

 35 

(2) This order takes effect upon signing. 36 

 37 

 38 

Dated:  April 3, 2024  at Dallas, Oregon. 39 

      40 

 41 

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 42 

 43 

 44 

     _______________________________ 45 

     Craig Pope, Chair 46 

 47 

 48 

     _______________________________ 49 

Approved as to Form   Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner 50 

 51 

______________ 52 

Morgan Smith    _______________________________ 53 

County Counsel    Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner 54 



EXHIBIT "A"

Legal Description

A tract of land 40 feet wide lying in the SE One-Quarter of Section 34 and the SW One-

Quarter of Section 35 of Township 6 South, Range 5 West of the Willamette Meridian,
Polk County, Oregon.

Said tract being a portion of what is now known as Moris Road (CR 7501). Said portion

of road was originally known as the C. W. Pewtherer Change to John Momis Road (Old

Road No. 197) and being further described as:

All that portion of the C. W. Pewtherer Change to John Morris Road (Old Road No. 197)

created by Comrnissioners Journal Volume 7 page 392 dated June 6th 1889. Beginning at

the NW termination of Polk County Board of Commissioners Order No. 23-03 vacating a

portion of Morris Road; Thence running Westerly; Thence Northerly; Thence Westerly to

the Easterly right of way of Perrydale Road. As shown on Exhibit "8"'

Save and except any public utilities that may exist in the existing right of way.

REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
MARCH 8,2022

DARREN D. BLACKWELL
97692

Re,rt1uls. tT/il/eozd



Pe
rr
yd

al
e
Rd

Pe
rr
yd

al
e
Rd

366 ft

289 ft

M
or
ri
s
Rd

286 ft
2.1 Acres    4,644.7 Feet

800

Exhibit "B"

Sources: Esri, Airbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson,
NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA, Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA,
Geoland, FEMA, Intermap and the GIS user community, Esri
Community Maps Contributors, Oregon Metro, Oregon State Parks,
State of Oregon GEO, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE,

Taxlots

PLSSLines

Corner

DLC - not found

Historical lines

Historical Boundary

Cartographic lines

Anno Arrow

Bearing / Distance Hook

DLC Arrow

ReferenceLines

Historical Boundary

DLC Arrow

DLC Arrow

Anno Arrow

Anno Arrow

Bearing/Distance Hook

Bearing / Distance Hook

Subdivision Line

Subdivision Line

Tax Code

Map Index

DLC

Section

12/8/2023, 3:10:08 PM
0 400 800200 ft

0 120 24060 m

1:4,514

NRCS, USDA, Polk County | Polk County Assesor, Polk County GIS | Esri Community Maps Contributors, Oregon Metro, Oregon State Parks, State of Oregon GEO, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, Bureau of Land Management, EPA, NPS, US



2.1 Acres  4,644.7 Feet

800

Exhibit "C"

Maxar

Taxlots

PLSSLines

Corner

DLC - not found

Historical lines

Historical Boundary

Cartographic lines

Anno Arrow

Bearing / Distance Hook

DLC Arrow

ReferenceLines

Historical Boundary

DLC Arrow

DLC Arrow

Anno Arrow

Anno Arrow

Bearing/Distance Hook

Bearing / Distance Hook

Subdivision Line

Subdivision Line

Tax Code

Map Index

DLC

Section

12/8/2023, 3:02:43 PM
0 400 800200 ft

0 120 24060 m

1:4,514

NRCS, USDA, Polk County | Polk County Assesor, Polk County GIS | Maxar |



HUMAN RESOURCES
POLK COUNTY POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, OREGON 97338.3174

(503) 623-1888 *rax (503) 623-1889

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Commissioners

FROM: Matt Hawkins, Admin. Services Director

DATE: April8,2024

SUBJECT: Reclassification of an Appraiser I

Wednesday - April 17,2024 (5 minutes)

RECOMMENDATION:
The Board of Commissioners approve the reclassification of an Appraiser I

ISSUE:
Shall the Board approve the reclassifications?

DISCUSSION:
It is recommended that Becki Zwemke in the Assessor's Office, be reclassified from an Appraiser I to
an Appraiser II. Becki has been with Polk County since January of 2016 and was promoted to an

Appraiser I in July of 2022. She has now met the expectations and requirements to be reclassified to
an Appraiser II.

Becki is currently at step 5 of the Appraiser I position which is $4,925. If the reclassification is approved,

she will move to step 4 of the Appraiser II position which is55,276.

Should the reclassification be approved it would be effective May 1, 2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This reclassification will have an impact on the budget for FY 23-24 of approximately $5,500
including PERS contribution should it be for 12 months.



P LK COUNTY

Porr CouNrY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
POLK COUNTY COURTHOUSE * DALLAS, 0REGON 97338
(s03) 623-9237

AUSTIN M"GUIGAN
Director

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Commissioners

Michael Burns, Associate Planner

April10,2024

Ordinance 24-02: Amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinance Chapters 136

and 177

Consent Calendar - April 17, 2024

Adopt Ordinance 24-02, included as Exhibit A;

Direct staff to amend Ordinance 24-02 and return it to the Board for adoption; or

Other.

F'ISCAL IMPACTS:

No fiscal impacts to the County have been identified.

EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT A - Ordinance 24-02 with Attachments

RECOMMENDATION:

Planning Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners adopt Ordinance_24-}2 in order to
amend ihe text to Polk County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) Chapters 136 and 177, as approved in
Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-03.

ISSUE:

Should Polk County adopt changes to PCZO Chapters 136 and 177 to bring the local ordinance
into compliance wiih State law, and adopt additional provisions for uses that could^be permitted
in the Ex^clusive Farm Use (EFU) and Timber Conservation (TC) Zoning Districts?

BACKGROUND:

On September 19, 2023 Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-03 was initiated_by the Polk County
Board'of Commissioners in order to consider potential changes to PCZO Chapter I77 to brtng
the local ordinance into compliance with State law, and add provisions for additional uses that
could be permitted in the TC zone.

On February 6,2024 the Polk County Planning Commission conducted a duly noticed public
hearing and recommended that the Polk County Board of Commissioners- adopt the proposed
amend-ments to PCZO Chapters 136 and 177. On March 13,2024 the Polk County Board of
Commissioners conducted 

-a 
duly noticed public hearing, deliberated, and passed a motion to

approve the proposed text amendments, as recommended by the Planning Commission and
Planning Staff.

ALTERNATIVES:

l.
2.
aJ.



EXHIBIT A

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR
POLK COUNTY, OREGON

In the matter of Legislative Amendment
LA23-03; amendments to the Polk County
ZoningOrdinance Chapters 136 and I77 to
bring the local ordinance into compliance
withstate law, and to adopt optional
changes for uses that could be permitted in
the Exclusive Farm Use and Timber
Conservation Zoning Districts

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

ORDINANCE NO. 24.02

WHEREAS, on September 19, 2023,the Polk County Board of^C_oTmissioners
initiated Legislative Amendment 23-03 to evaluate updates to the text of Polk Cgqty Zoning
Ordinance dhapter 177 inorder to bring the local ordinance into_compliance with State law
and to consideioptional changes for usEs that could be permitted in the Timber Conservation
(TC) Zoning District; and

duly
and

WHEREAS, on February 6,2024,the Polk County Planning Commislion conducted a

noticed public hearing for iegislative Amendment 23-03 and received public testimony;

WHEREAS, the Polk County Planning Commission deliberated at the February 6,

2024 public hearing and recommend'ed that the Polk County Board of Commissioners amend

Polk tounty ZoniigOrdinance Chapter 136 and 177 inorder to c9qply with State law and to

adopt additional sta-ndards for uses that could be permitted in the EFU and TC Zoning
Districts, as recommended by Planning Staff; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners conducted a duly noticed public hearing on
March 13,2024, and provided an opportunity for the submission of public testimony..The
Board of Commissioners deliberated at the March 13,2024 public hearing and passed a

motion to approve Legislative Amendment 23-03 as recommended by the Planning
Commission and Planning Staff; now therefore

THE POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Sec. 1 That Polk County Adopts the findings in support of Polk County Legislative
Amendment 23-03 contained in Section III of the March 5,2024 Staff Memorandum as

Attachment A hereto.

Sec. 2 That Polk County Adopts amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinance
as set forth in Attachments B hereto.

Sec. 3 That Polk County Adopts amendments to the Polk County Zoning Ordinance
as set forth in Attachments C hereto.

Sec. 4 This ordinance is not effective until2l days after mailing of the decision, as

required by Polk County Zoning Ordinance 115.040(C)

Page I of2 Ordinance 24-02



EXHIBIT A

I
2
J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
1l
t2
l3
t4
l5
l6
t7
l8
l9
20
2t
))
23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

3l
32

JJ

Dated this 17th day of April,2024 at Dallas, Oregon.

Approved as to Form

Morgan Smith
Counly Counsel

First Reading:
Second Reading:
Recording Secretary:

POLK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Craig Pope, Chair

Lyle Mordhorst, Commissioner

Jeremy Gordon, Commissioner

Page2 of2 Ordinance24-02



ATTACHMENT A

Ordinance 24-02
Findings in Supporl of Legislative Amendment (LA) 23-03

III. CRITERIA FOR LEGISLATIVE AMENDMENTS

A legislative amendment to the text of the PCZO may be approved provided that the reques-t il^
basel on substantive information and factual basis to support the change. In amending the PCZO,
Polk County shall demonstrate compliance with PCZO t tS.O0O. The applicable review and decision
criteria are iisted in bold, followed by staff s analysis and findings.

I. AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE POLK COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.

(A) [ORS 197.612(l)l An amendment to the text of the Polk County Zoning Ordinance
iolely for the friipose of conforming the ordinance to new requirements in a land
use statute, statewide land use ptanning goal or rule of the Land Conservation and
Development Commission implementing the statutes or goals may be made
without holding a public hearing when:

(1) Polk County gives notice to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation
and Development of the proposed change in the manner provided by ORS
197.610 and 197.615;

(2) The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development,confirms in
writing that the only effect of the proposed change is to conform the Polk
County ZoningOrdinance to the new requirementsl and

(3) The Planning Division provides notice of the proposed change to the
Planning Commission.

(B) An amendment to the text of the Polk County Zoning Ordina_nce under the
provisions of subsection (A) of this section shall be considered a ministerial
decision and not a land use.action. Amendments under subsection (A) of this
section need only be adopted on the Board of Commissioner's Consent agenda.

(C) All amendments to the text of the Polk County Zoning Ordinance that are not
included in subsection (A) of the section shall be processed under the procedures
and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment described in Chapter
I 15.

Staff Findines: The proposed text amendments are intended to brrngPCZO_Chapters 136 and 177

irlto cdfirmance with State law where required, and to evaluate and consider adopting optional
changes for uses which may be permitted in the EFU and TC VoningDistricts..While a portion of
these-text amendments are included under subsection (A) of this criteria, not all of the changes are

for the purpose of conformingPCZO Chapter 136 and 777 to new requirements found in Oregon-
Revised St^atutes, Statewide Planning Goals, or Oregon Administrative Rules, but rather to consider
adopting optional changes. Therefore, staff has deteimined that the proposed text amendments shall
be frocJss6d under the procedures and criteria for a legislative comprehensive plan amendment
described inPCZO Chapter 1 15.

The Polk County Board of Commissioners initiated this legislative amendment process on
September 19,2023. Staff sent notice of the proposed text amendments to the Oregon Department
ofland and Conservation Development (DLCD) on January 2,2024. Staff sent notice of the
Planning Commission Public Hearing to all interested parties on January 1,I,2024, more than 20.
days pri-or to the hearing. Notice of tfie Planning Commission public hearing was also published in
th6 January 17,2024 publication of the Itemized Observer newspaper and was posted on the
Planning Division page of the Polk County website on January I7 , 2024. Pursuant to PCZO
1 15.040, the Planninf Commission conducted a public hearing on February 6,2024 and made a

Attachment A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

recommendation to the Board of Commissioners to adopt staffls recommendation of the proposed

amendments to PCZO Chapters 136 and I77.

Staff sent notice of the March 13,2024 Board of Commissioners public hearing to all interested
parties on February 20,2024, more than2} days prior to the hearing, \g|ig. o{the Board of
bommissioners public hearing was also published in the February 21, 2024 publication of the
Itemized Obserier newspapeiand was posted on the Planning Division page of the Po-lk County
website on February 20,-2024. No comments have been received as of the writing of this repoft.

2. Compliance with Oregon Revised Statutes, and the statewide planning goals and--related
administrative rules. If an exception to one or more of the goals is necessary' Polk C_ounty

shall adopt findings which addr-ess the exception criteria in Oregon Administrative Rules,
Chapter 660, Division 4; IPCZO 115.060(4.)]

(B) A local government shall amend its acknowledged comprehensive-plan or
acknowledged regional framework plan and land use regulations imp_lgry9tt!1q
either plan by a self-initiated post-acknowledgment process under ORS 197.610 to
197,625 to cornply with a new-requirement in land use statutes, statewide land use

planning goals bi rules implementing the statutes or the goals. IORS 197 .646(1)]

(C) When a local government does not adopt amendments to an acknowledged
comprehensivi plan, an acknowledged regional framework plan or land use
regulations implementing either plan, as required by subsection (1) of this s.ection,
the new requirements apply directly to the local government's land use decisions.
The failure to adopt amendments to an acknowledged comprehensive plan,. an
acknowledged regional framework plan or land use regulations implementing
either plan requiied by subsection (1) of this section is a basis for initiation of
enforcement aition pursuant to ORS 197.319 to 197.335. IORS 197.646(3)l

General Findings: ORS 197.646 states that when new land use statutes, statewide land u-se planning
gotlsoffilesmlementing the statutes or the goals are enacted, counties must either adopt
Imendments to their local code to implement the changes to State law or apply those changgs_ _
directly to land use applications. Curiently, the Planning Division applies ceftain sections of ORS
and OAR directly to idnd use applications. Some changes in State law are not mandated to be

adopted by the local governmenf but rather allow the local government the opportunity to be more
restrictive than State law.

OAR Chapter 660 Division 33 pertains to agricultural lands and the administrative rules that.govern
land uses that are consistent with Oregon Statewide Planning Goal 3. OAR Chapter 660 Division 6

pertains to forest lands and the administrative rules that govern land uses that are consistent with
bregon Statewide Planning Goal4. ORS 215 pertains touses that may be allowed in the EFU and
TC Zones. This text amendment is intended to-add the changes found in OAR Chapter 660 Division
33, OAR Chapter 660 Division 6, and ORS 215 to the PCZO where required !y ttt" State. Many of 

.

these changes are not substantive but are rather minor changes intended to make the language found
in the PCZO verbatim to State law. In other cases, some of the changes would add additional
provisions that have not been adopted by the County but have been applied dire-ctly_to land use
applications. Because these required changes are not substantive but rather are for the sake of
conformance, staff will not det-ail these changes in the findings. The full text amendment with all
changes can be found in Attachments A and B.

This report will be primarily concentrated on the evaluation of the changes found in OAR Chaplgr
660 Division 33, OAR Chapter 660 Division 6, and ORS 215 that are not required to be adopted by
the County and allow local governments to be more restrictive than State law. Due to changes in
State law,-P CZO Chapter 1i6 and 117 are currently more restrictive, less restrictive, or differentiate
from State law in its regulation of some land uses that may be allowed in the EFU and TC zones. As
part of this process, the Board of Commissioners could adopt the optional text amendments as
proposed Uy Staff, adopt those text amendments with further restrictions, or choose to not adopt

2Attachment A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

those text amendments. These changes witl be referred to in this report as "optional changes," and

are discussed in further detail below along with stafls recommendation for each change.

In other cases, there have been changes in State law to optional uses which have resulted in the

PCZO being less restrictive in some sections. Although these uses are optional, the changes are

required to 6e added to the PCZO in order to continue to be in compliance with State law. These

;d;t;r 1lyiff U. iefer.eO to in this report as "mandatory changes," and are discussed in further detail
below.

The Planning Division currently authorizes manufactured dwellings thal were used as a temporary
medical hard'ship dwelling to be "removed" by converting them to an otherwise approved use. In
some instances, the intend'ed use could require the property owner to obtain a change of use

iuiiaing permii, including inspections from the nuitAi?rg Division. In other instances, the intended.
ur. .o"i.i requiie a new p"lanning authorization. Ulimately, if the intended use of the manufactured
dwelling is oiherwise peimitted -by the zone, staff finds that it is not necessary to physically. remove

the man"ufactured dwelling from t'he subject property, so long as all necessary permits are obtained

to formally convert and/oire-authorize ihe s^truiture for an approved use. This process is intended to

limit the burdens placed on property owners while also meeting the requirements found in State

law. For these reasons, staffrecbmmends not adopting this text amendment as it is written in statute.

Medical Hardship Optional Change

Procedure for Temporarv Hardshin Dwellinss: Mandatory Change

Temnorarv Medical ardshin Dwellinss: Optional Change

Within the Deer and Elk Habitat area, "residential devel
Pursuant to PCZO 182.040(4), when a permitted use in

State law indicates that temporary medical hardship dwellings should be processed under a
conditional use review, as this us-e is listed under OAn e0O-006-0025(4). As discussed above,

temporary medical hardship dwellings are currently proces_sed through an_administrative review
pto""rr. Staff cunently apflies the glneral review standards listed under PCZO 177 .050 to alI
fonditional use applicitidris. The prlrpose of this criteria is to,ensure that the proposal would not
force a significant change or significantly increase the cost of accepted f^qry gtlote_st practices o.n

surroundiig lands devoled to firm or foiest use. Staff already applies PCZO^177.050 to.applications
for temporiry medical hardship dwellings; therefore, changing th.is process from administrative
review io a cbnditional use reviiew woul,C not alter staff s evaluation for a temporary medical
hardship dwelling. This amendment would change this applicatlon from ? Iypl- A notification
procedure to a Tfpe B notification procedure, as specified inPCZO nL.240. This would require
ituffto send notG of a complete application to all neighboring property owners located within a

750 foot buffer surrounding the su6.ibct property prior to the issuance of the decision. Because this
change would be required, staffbegan piocbssing temporary medical hardship dwellings under a
TypJB procedure 1;2023. Based on ttie information discussed above, staff finds that this text
amendment is a mandatory change.

In some instances, temporary medical hardship dwelling applications also require a significant
resource management plan iithe dwelling would be sited within the inventoried Deer and Elk
Habitat,A.rea, which is a Goal 5 protected resource.

opment" is considered a conflicting use.
the underlying zone is listed as a conflicting

3Attachrnent A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

use, the management plan review type is ministerial. However, pursuant to PCZO 182.040(8),
when a conditTonal ,s'e is identified 

^as 
a conditional use, a public hearing is required.

Since the mandatory change identified above includes changing temporary medical hardship

O*.fiingr io b. u conditioial use rather than an administrative ieview process, staff recommends

that clar'lf ing text be added to the temporary hardship dwelling criteria j!{ specifies the

r.quit.-.nts"of Chapter lB2 are appli&ble,-but are not subjeclto the publichearing requirements

lisied in 182.040(B). Wh.n PCZ5 ehapter 182 was adopted.tgryp_orary hardship dwellings were..

not conditional uiei. Therefore, staff fiirds that it was never Polk County's intent to require a public

hearing for temporary medical hardship dwellings that are within the Deer and Elk Habitat area.

Staff rEcom."ndr aciopting the optional text amindment for temporary hardship dwellings included
in Attachments A and B.

Replasement Dwelling: Parl Mandatory Changes, Part Optional Changes

The Oregon Legislature recently amended ORS 215.291 through thlpassage of HouseBill2l92
eOZ\, irii"np"ertains to replaiement dwellings.in resource zones. The_Proposed-changes rygyld
i".f"d. updating the replacement dwelling critlria forPolk County's PpV +n9 TC zones, while
updates to the Firm/Foiest zone would bJcompleted through a future legislative amendment
piocess that focuses on updates PCZO Chapter 138.

Staff has identified a discrepancy in ORS 215.291(2)(b)(C), which may require a future legislative
correction. ORS 2 I 5.291(2)(b)(C) states:

(2) For replacement of a lawfully established dwelling under this section:

(b) The replacement dwelling:

(C) Must comply with the construction provisions of section R327 of the Oregon
Residential Specialty Code, if:

(i) The dwelling is in an area identified as extrem_e or high wildfire risk on the statewide
map of wildfire risk described in ORS 477.490; or

(ii) No statewide map of wildfire risk has been adopted.

These criteria reference a "statewide map of wildfire risk" described in ORS 477.490 and has

additional development standards for properties located within the "!]igh" and "extreme" risk
categories. However, the map describ6d in OnS 471.490 is called a "statewide wildfire hazard Tap"
and 

"<loes not include an "extieme" risk category, but rather only has three risk catego-ries including
i'lo*" "moderate", and "high". Staff revievied-a draft of this map_ and found that Polk County-does
not contain any "high" wild"fire risk areas. For these reasons_, staffrecomme_nds that the amended

criteria found in O{S 215.291(2)(bXC) not be adopted locally at this time. Instead, staff can.apply
this statute directly as a conditioir'of A6velopment that would require the applicant to determine the

applicability of these standards at the time of development.

Staff recommends that all other mandatory changes found in ORS 215.291be adopled^to provide
consistency with State law. The replacembnt dwelling criteria currently fo.uld inPCZO,C_hapters
136 and lj7 rsboth more restrictive and less restrictive than State law and the proposed changes

would provide parity.

Home Occupations: Optional Change

PCZO 177.040(A) currently permits home occupations that are operated-by^a resident of the
property in whiih'the busineis in located, subjeCt to review and approvu^t _oI q conditional use

ir.rinit.'Uome occupations are authorized by the State pursuant to ORS 215.448 and OAR 660-006-
bOZSI+;19. State law currently authorizes home occupations t9 Qe operated by a resident or an

employee of a resident of the property on which the business in located.

Under the current criteria listed inPCZO 177.040(A), home occupations must be operated by a
resident of the property in which the business is located, but may employ up to five (5) employees.

4Attachment A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

This proposed amendment would authorize hgme. occupations to be operated by an employee of the

resid6nt, although, it could not result in any additional employees and would not permit any.uses or

a size and scale"that could not otherwise b6 permitted under the current criteria. Based on this

information, staff finds thatPCZO 177.040(A) could be interpreted as being more restrictive than

State law. For these reasons, staff recommeirds adopting the proposed text amendment, as shown in
Attachment B.

l\Iprxr Sinole Fami l*, A nnpssn^r T-)rxrel I Unit tn Qr rnnnrf F F Optional Change

Pursuant to ORS 2I5.757 and OAR 660-006-0027(9), counties may choose to allow a new single

fumify accessory dwelling unit to support family forestry in the TC zone subject to a review and

uppiduuf when ine awetting would be occupie{ly _u" owner or a relative of the owner to assist with
itJ foreSry operation on th-e property. fhe pCZO does not currently list this as a permitted.use in 

.

tne fC zoie.'Adopting this t'ext^am6ndment would authorize single family accessory dwelling units

to support family for.r-try in the TC zone. To provide clear parameters regarding the manner.in
*ni.iittrir ,,r. *uy be authorized in the TC zone, staff recommends adopting this text amendment,

as shown in Attachment B.

vision to

to grant applicants addi
recommends adopting

ora Optional Change

Pursuant to ORS 2I5.783 and OAR 660-006-0026(2)(e), counties may choose to adopt standards to

allow land divisions to preserve open space or a paik in the TC zone. A land division under this
criteria would require the purchas^er ofbne of the resulting parcels to be,a provider of public parks

or open space, or a not-for-profit land conseryallon grgaytTVtion. Land divisions under this section

*ould stiil be'subject to the partition standards listed in polt County Subdivision and Partition
Ordinance (PCSO) Chapter 91 . For these reasons, staff recommends adopting this text amendment,

as shown in Attachment B.

Period of Validit), for Residential Uses: Mandatory Change

Currently, thePCZO states that land use approvals for residential uses are valid for four (4) years. A
single ti6 Q) year extension to this periodbf validity may be approved upon submission of a
written reqriesi for an extension prioi to the expiration of the approval.

Pursuant to OAR 660-003-00140(5), a permit approved
wth boundaty may

for residential development on agricultural
or forest land outside ofan urban gro receive an additional five (5) one-year
extensions upon written requests prior to the iration of the previous extension. Such extensions

ma only be approved when
of the

433
of the

The text amendments
land use applicationstional extensions for

this text amendment, as shown in Attachment B'

Land Division Requirements: Optional Change

Currently, land partitions in the TC zone must be exercised within.two (2) years of the effective
date puriuantt;PCZO 177.060(F). Staff has not found any provisions in state law which regqle^ 

.

the p'eriod of validity for land partitions in the TC zone to be two (2) years. 41tti: *ay.,th: PCZO is
mor^e restrictive than state law. Adopting the proposed text amendments would allow the County to
give applicants more or less time to exeicise approved land divisions. For these reasons, staff
iecommends adopting this text amendment, as shown in Attachment B'

General Findines: The recommended amendments to PCZO 136 and 177, which would comply. *
wiTFandlmtCment the applicable amendments to State law, are included as Attachments A and B.
Consequentiy, this update process would be consistent with ORS 197.646(l). An exceplionto the
Oregon Statewide Planning Goals is not required to approve any of these amendments. Staff
concludes that the proposed text amendments to the PCZO would comply with this criterion.

5

that
land use

Attachrnent A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

(B) Conformance with the Comprehensive Pla-n (PC*CP) go.uls, policies and intent, and
any plan map amendment ciiteria in the plan; IPCZO 115.060(8)l

Findines: The Polk County Comprehensive Plan (P_CC_.P) is impljmeltgd by the provisi9l,ltl the
pffiandPolk County SirUAiviiion and Partition Ordinance (PCSO). Section 7 of the PCCP,

i-pf.*."tation Techniques, states: "in theory,.the zoning ordinance is a legilJative-expression of
itt.'-Co-pr"hensive Plan and must satisfy certain standards s_elq1t by statute'" The PCCP is

ilpl";;;t.a *itttir the bounds provided by !!ate law. The PCC| can set goals.and p_olicies, which

tffirg[ r-plementation by the pCZO or PCSO, are more restrictive than State law. However, the

proviJions'of tn. PCZO oi pCSO may not be less restrictive than State law. Where Polk County

i.q.rii.-.nts and ORS conflict, the County is required to apply the more restrictive of the two

standards.

As discussed above, ORS 197.646 requires that Polk County update its local code to implement
;h;g.t a" State taw. Until such changes are made, the Couhtymust.impl.ement the new provisions

of stit.law directly. planning Staff is-currently applying State law directly to applications.for many

of tft" proposed chinges. tn lfuht of the changes 1o S14e_]pw, Polk Coun_ty hirs 3n opportunity to
evaluate and consideiadoptin"g these chang"i to pCZO Chapter 136 and 1 17. As discussed, some of
these changes are required^ aniother chang-es are optiona! Mq"V of the changes are not substantive

but are rutfr'"t intenddd to provide parity bdtween t6e local ordinance and the language found in
State law.

The proposed text amendments would include changes to PCZO I77 .030, which pertains.to uses

t6ut ir" butright permitted in the TC zone. These chang-es are mandatory and would add the

i*guug. itofir OnS Chapter 2I5 andOAR Chapter 660 Division 6 verbatim in order to provide

iirTt1 f ith Stut" law. Th'e intent of this is to afford citizens the right to.uses that have little or no

i.tpdO on neighboring properties without requiring a land.u,s9 application orlicense. By adopting

the language iound in"Stat6 law verbatim, the County wo_r1l! be pgrmlttilg all such uses that are

outrigfi pe".mitted uses and authorized by ORS Chapter 215 an[ OAR Chapter 660, Division 6. The

County does not have deference over any ofthese changes.

The proposed text amendments would also include changes toPCZO 136.040 and 177 '035, which
perta'in io ,r"r that are subject to administrative review land use application..Similar toPCZO
j lA.OiO, these chang.r ur"" mandatory and are intended to provide parityrvith State law by adopting

the language found in the applicable bRSr and OARs verbatim. Many of these thangeshave been

applied"bytounty staff dir6dtly to land use applicatio.ns. Therefore, the intent of these changes is

sitiiply to add the'language froin State law to tire local ordinance rather than applying the provisions

directly from State law.

The proposed text amendments could include changes toP.CZO 136.050 and 177.040,I77.060, and

tll.Olti,which are uses that the county may be more restrictive in implementing. Changes to these

sections that are more restrictive then Stateiaw are not mandatory; however, the County may not be

less restrictive than State law. As discussed in the previous section, the Planning Commission has

made a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners regarding the adoption of each of these

changes to the PCZO as provided in Attachments A and B. The proposed amendments to the PCZO
were?esigned to directly implement State law and adopt uses that are not curently permitted by the

PCZO. Tli'e Board of Commissioners could choose to adopt more restrictive standards in such cases

where the Planning Commission has recommended adoption.

Conformance with specific PCCP goals, policies and intent are discussed below.

1. Polk Counfy will strive to permit those uses that have little or no impact on
neighboring properties without requiring a land use determination or limited
land use determination. IPCCP Section 2, Element A, Goal 1.3]

2. Polk County will permit those farm and nonfarm uses in agricultural areas
authorized by Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and Oregon Administrative
Rules Chapter 660;Division 33. IPCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands

6Attachnent A of Ordinance 24-02



Policy 1.41

3. Polk County will permit farm-related and non-farm residential use in
agriculturai a.eai consistent with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter.2l5^ T.d
O"regon Administrative Rules Chaptei660, Division 33. IPCCP Section 2, Element

B, Agricultural Lands PolicY 1.61

Findines: As discussed, some of the proposed text amendments would directly implement ORS . .

ffiAt5 and OAR bhapter 660, biuirion 33. These text amendments would be consistent with
FaiP Section 2, Element B, Poli.y 1.4, which states that Polk County willpermit those farm and

nonfarm uses in agricultural areas buthori zedby ORS Chapter 215 and OAR 660-033. The
piop"r.A tixt amJrdments to PCZO Chapter t:O for harp{ip dw_ellinglin the EFU zone would
'utr,j U. consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.6, which states that

eott Co"nty will permit farm-related and non-farm resldential use in agricultr{al areas consistent

*iift Oi.goir Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and Oreg-on Administrative Rules Chapter 660, Division
f j. tn adflition, the required text amendments, speclfically the outright p^ermitted uses listed in
\CZO 136.030, would be consistent with PCCP Section 2, ElemenfA, Goal 1.3, which states Polk

County will strive to permit those uses that have little or no impact on neighboring properties

withorit requiring a land use determination or limited land use determination.

4. Polk County will discourage the development of nonfarm uses in agricultural
areas. IPCCP Section 2, Elernent B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5]

Findings: The proposed text amendments would include amendments to nonfarm uses' PCCP

S'"ctffi, Elerireni B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1.5 is intended to discourage-nonfarm uses in the

BfU ,on., although, it is"acknowledged that some nonfarm uses are permitted subject to review and

appioual of an adirinistrative or 
"onditional 

use application. As mentioned, in such cases where

adhitional nonfarm uses could be permitted or wh-eie there have been changes to State law
pertainine to nonfarm uses, staff has designed the proposed amendments to the PCZO to directly
implemeit State law. Because such nonfirm uses are subject to review-and approval from the

Ftdnning Division, limitations and conditions can be impbsed to limit the impacts of those nonfarm

uses. Fo"r this reason, staff finds the proposed text amendments would be consistent with PCCP

Section 2, Element B, Agricultural Lands Policy 1'5.

5. Polk County shall zone forest lands for uses allowed pursuant to Oregon
Administraiive Rules Chapter 660, Division 6. In addition to for_est practices and
operations and uses auxiliary to forest practices, as set forth in OregonRevised
Statute 527.722, Polk County shall allow in the forest environment the following
general fypes ofuses:

^. Uses related to, and in support of, forest operations;

b. Uses to conserve soil, water and air quality and to provide for fish and wildlife
resources, agriculture and recreational opportunities appropriate for the
forest lands;

ATTACHMENT A

c. Locally dependent uses such as communication towers, mineral and aggregate
resources use, etc.l

d. Forest management dwellings as provided for in Oregon Administrltiv-e Rule
660- 06-027; and e. Other dwettings under prescribed conditions. IPCCP
Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy 1.4]

6. Polk County will permit new dwellings and structures on designatedforest lan{s
consistent wittr Oiegon Revised Statutes Chapter 215 and Oregon Adminis_trative
Rules Chapter 660,"Division 6. IPCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy
1.51

Findings: As previously discussed, the proposed text amendments would directly implement
Ctrapter Zt5 dnd OAR Chapter 660, Divisibn 06 for uses in the TC zone. These text amendments

7Attaclrment A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

would be consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policies 1.4 and I '5, which-.
state that Polk County will permit those uies, including the lery Fingt: fq3ily Accessory Pwglling
Unit to Support Family Foristry Use, on forest lands authorizedby ORS Chapter 215 and OAR
660-006.

7. Polk Counfy shall provide the opportunity to establish single-family drvellings on

designated iorest tinds that comff with iot-of-record provisions established
und6r state law consistent with Or-egon Revised Statutes, Chapter 215, and
Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapler 660, Division 6. [PCCP Section 2, Element

C, Forest Lands PolicY 1.61

Findines: The proposed text amendments would include amendments to lot-of-record dwelling^ -
criterii-tistea iir pbzo 177.070(A) in order to provide conformity with oRS_C_hapter 215 and oAR
Chapter 660, Division 06. Thesd text amendments would be consistent with PCCP Section 2,

Elerirent C, Forest Lands Policy 1.6 which states that Polk County shall provide the opportunity to

.rt"Ufirtt single-family dwellings on forest lands thal comply with lot-of-record provisions found in
ORS Chapter 215 and OAR Chapter 660, Division 06.

8. Polk County will review all requests for the division of land in forest land areas

and will peimit only those which meet the following criteria:

a. For forest operations and practices, the minimum lot size will be at least 80

acres.

b. For non-forest parcels, the proposed division is consistent wlth Ore^g_on

Revised Statutei, Chapter f15, and Oregon Administrative Rules, Chapter
660, Division 6 and coinplies with all applicable requirements of the ,zo1i18
andpartitioning ordinaices. IPCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest Lands Policy
r.7l

Findings: Some of the proposed text amendments would directly implement ORS Chapter 2l5.utd
tfi]{Fnupter 660, Divisi<in 06 by providing parity between the language in theseclrapters, and the

PCZO. The propoied text amendm^ents alsolnclude a new set of criteria under which ?l aPP^ligTJ

could divide thdir land to preserve open space or a park in the TC_1o1e pursuant to OAR 660-006-

0026(2)(e). These text am^endments would be consistent with PCCP Section 2, Element C, Forest

Landi fbii"y 1.7, which states that Polk County will only permit land division requests. in forest.

land when the minimum parcel size is at least liO acres oi ftre proposed division is consistent with
ORS Chapter 215 and OAR Chapter 660, Division 06.

(C) That the proposed change is in the public interest and will be of general public
benefit; and

Findinqs: The purpose of this legislative amendment is to update the PCZQ in order to reflect
chanils in Staie liw or discrepaicies found between State law and the PCZO. The proposed 

.

ame;dments would be in the public interest because they would provide continuity !ett19e11!e_
requirements of State law and^ the PCZO . Currently, the. Planning Division must apply ORS. 21 5,

OAR Cnapter 660 Division 6, andOAR Chapter 660 Division33 directly to some types of land use

applications. This situation rnakes it difficulffor applicants and property-owners to understand what
piovisions apply to their property. The proposed teit amendments would resolve that issue. This
bontinuity wb"ia benefrtbotlh applicanti and other property owners seeking to understand their
property rights.

This process also provides the opportunity for the Board of Commissioners to consider how to
regulate specific optional .tser *here the'county can be more restrictive than State law. For those

oplional changes discussed in this report, the Board of Commissioners could adopt the text
amendments is proposed by Staff and recommended by the Planning Commission,_apply those text
amendments wifh fuither restrictions, or choose to not adopt the text amendments. In some cases,

there have been changes in State law to optional uses which have resulted in the PgZq being less

restrictive in some sections. Although these uses are optional, the changes are required to be

8Attachmsnt A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT A

adopted in order to continue to be in compliance with State law. For such change-s, th9 Board of
Commissioners shall adopt those changei as required to no longer be lessrestrictive than State law,

which would alleviate the need to apply State law directly to land use applications.

Staff believes that adopting the language from State law directly rather than being more restrictive
than State law would be inlhe pubfc interest and of general public benefit because it remove

certain restrictions and would afford property owners ceftairrproperty rights that are authoriVe4by
the State and which are not currently pei-itted in the TC zone. As discussed above, staff and the.

Ftunni"g Commission have also reiommended that_some optional changes should not.be-adopted.
poiinoJ. changes, staff believes that adoption would be unnecessa-rY and it would be in the public
interest and wo"uld be of general public b6nefit to not adopt those changes at this time. Staff s and

the Planning Commissioi's recommendations on the speCific optional changes are discussed in
further detail above.

(D) Compliance with the provisions of any applicable inte-r_go_vernmental agreement
pertaining to urban growth boundaries and urbanizable land.

Findings: Polk County has adopted intergovernmental agreements (IGAs) with each of the cities

that hfr",rrban growth boundaries (UGB) that extend outside gf c_ity limits and into Polk County's
planning jurisdiition. These cities aie Salem, Dallas, Monpout^h,Independence, and Willamina.
tn. putffCity UGB is entirely located within city limits;therefore, Polk County does not have an

IGA regarding UGB land use management with Falls City.

The proposed text amendments to the PCZO would amend the standards for some uses that are

outrighipermitted and some uses that are subject to review and appr.oval of an administrative
revie.iv oi conditional use application in the EFU and TC zones. While most properties in the UGB
are zoned Suburban Residenlial (SR), where these text amendments would not apply, some.

properties in UGBs are zoned EFU. None of the ploposed text amendments would impact the.
^exiiting terms of any IGA's with any cities. PolliCounty will continug to provide notice to cities

when t[e county reieives land use applications for property located within an adopted UGB.

Staff finds that the proposed text amendments would comply with this criterion.

9Attachment A of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT B

Amendments to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 136;

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) ZoningDistrict

Additions are doublc-uueledined

Deletions are in strik€@
136.040. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW. The following uses are

permitted, subject to review and approval under the prescriptive standards specified herein and as

may otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local regulations and permits:

(r) Replacement Dwellinq
oRS 215.291J

be altered; restered or replaeed has; er formerly had:

ing

@
(b) If the drvelling was remeved; destreyed er demelished:

(i) The dwelling's tax lot dees net have a lien fer delinquent ad

vaterem+axes;-anA

(ii) Any remeval, destruetien er demelitien oeeurred en or after

wel+;
@) If the d+velling is eurrently in sueh a state ef dislepair that the 9rvelling

+s-r*nsafe+sr<x

ef
(d) 4 dwelling net deseribed in subparagraph(b) er (e) ef this qaragraph

was assessed as a dwelling fer purpeses ef ad valerem taxation:

te the land and beeame suhieet to assessrnent as deseribed in
eRs3e7-+r+

ion;

(a) The drvelling te be replaeed mtrst be remevedt demelished er eenverted

ing,is

Attachment B ofOrdinance 24-02

permitting au&eri



ATTACHMENT B

thalis nst less than 90 days after the replaeement permit is
i{sue+

@ine'
(i) May be sited en ariy part ef the same lot er pareel'

standardsjn+no++

(b) If pessible; for the purpese ef rninimizing the adverfe impa.ets en 
^

rdeuree uie ef ta

ie+:

(ii) May net betransferred; by sale er e-tlerwisgi exeept by the

Attachrnent B ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT B

(2) These temperar]'previsions to ORS 215'291 sunset en
JanuarY 2; 2024, [Amended by Ordinanee 18 0l and 23 0ll

(al Has. ot fomertv

fil mtactexteriom;

0[) Interior wiring for i
(iv) n heatine syste

fil eive vears Uefore

fi) Five vears before the date of the destructiqn !t demalilion: or

Gil fne aate ttrat tne Awen
ana Uecame suUiect to P

(2t for reptacement of

455,055-

ft) fne reotacemen
(i) May be sited on an

Attachment B ofOrdinance 24-02



136.050 CONDITIONAL USES [OAR 660-033-0130]. The following uses may be approved,
subject to compliance with the proc-edures and criteria under Chapter 119, applicable state and

federal regulations, and other specific criteria as may be indicated:

ATTACHMENT B

(+l tfan appticant is granteA a AeferreA repl

(a) fne Oeferred reol@

Dwell
manufactured dwelling, recreational use ofan

(G)

existing
term of

building in conjunction
suffered by

with an
the

use for the

the hardship existing
136.060,

resident or a relative of the resident,
subject to compliance with Section provided that: [Amended by Ordinance 23-

031

(1) The hardship is cerlified by a licensed physician;

(2) The manufactured home or existing building converted to residential use is
connected to the existing sewage disposal system; except whel the County
Sanitarian finds the existing syitem tb be inadequate and that it cannot be

repaired or is not physically available to serve the additional dwelling; I.flhe
minufactured home will uie a public sanitary system, such condition will not
be required.

(3) The applicant agrees to renew the permit every two years.

(4) Within 3 months of the end of the hardship, the manufactured dwelling,
recreational vehicle, or building converted to a temporary residential use, shall
be removed, demolished, or converted to an approved nonresidential use.

(5) As used in this section, "hardship" means a medical hardship or hardship for
the care ofan aged or infirm person or persons.

(6) A temporary residence approved under this section is not eligible for
replacement under Section 1 36.040(I).

realth and safetv or fo s tins at t

Attachment B ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT B

Chapter 182. but sh requuene$slrs1ql
under Section tg2.

Attachnlent B ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

Amendments to Polk County ZoningOrdinance Chapter 177;

Timber Conservation (TC) Zoning District

Additions are doubl€_undcdincd

Deletions are in s**e+nreugh

177.020. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Chapter, the following definitions shall
apply:
(IQ) Center of the Subject Tract. As used in Section 177 .070, "center of the subject tract" means

the mathematical centroid of the tract. lAmenoed by ordinance 23-011

(2l Other forested land air. water and fish and wi
lAmenaeA ny Orair@

(Cp) Cubic Foot Per Acre Per4earmeans the_ average alnual increase in cubic foot volume of
' : 

wood fiber per acre for fully stocked stands at tG culmination of mean annual increment as

reported by the USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service (NRCS) soil survey. [Amended

by Ordinance ll-031

(Dl) Cubic Foot Per Tract Per Year means the average annual increase in cubic foot volume of
' : 

wood fiber per tract for fully stocked stands at the culmination of mean annual increment as

reported byihe USDA Natural Resource Conservation Service OfRCS) soil survey. [Amendctl

by Ordinance I l-031

(EQ) Date of Creation and Existence. When a lot,_parce^l or tract is reconfigured pursua.nt to
' - applicable law after November 4, 1993 , the efGcJ of which. is 1o qualiff a lot,. parcel or tract

foi ttt. siting of a dwelling, the date of the reconfiguration is the date of creation or
existence. F.econfigured means any change in the boundary of the lot, parcel or tract.

SINGLE.F^AMtrLY RESII)ENCES AUTHORIZATI.ON

Forest land "Lot of Record" AR

Tract Forest land AR

"Tem " Forest land AR

Tem for Medical ARCUP

Caretaker Residence for Parks and Hatcheries P

Replacement Dwelling AR
AR

COMMDRCI.A.L

Home oRS 215.448 CUP

Destination resorts pursuant to ORS 197.435 to l97.465land Statewide
Planning Goal 8

P

Attachrnent C ofOrdinance 24-02



(FL) Forest Operation means
any forest tree species as

ATTACHMENT C

any commercial activity relating to the growing or harvesting of
defined in ORS 527.620(6).

treatments. t.lmenoe

(G$) Relative means a child, parent, stepparent, gra.ndc-h!lg,^gl?qd!g9l! ttgPg1u"dparent,.aibli''g,stepsibling,niece,nepheworfirstcousin.tW
(H\) Tract means one or more contiguous lots or parcels in the same ownership in ORSAS

21s.010(2).

177.030. USES PERMITTED BY RIGHT. No building, structure, or premise shall be used,

arranged, or designed to be used, erected, structurally alteied or enlarged, except for one or more

of the following uses.

(E) Uses and activities to conserve soil, air, and water quality and to provide for and manage
' ' wildlife and fisheries resources, including, but not iimited to creation, restoration, and

enhancement of wetlands, fisheries, and wildlife habitat.

(D @ distribution lines wi (e.g., electric,
'-' telephone, natr.a@ etc.) and accessory equiprygqt (e.g., electric distribution transformers'

meter cabinets, teririnal boxes, pedestals), an+rnnien orEquipncnAfnat provide service
hookups, including water service hookups.

(G) Temporary portable facility for the pfimary processing of forest products. The facility shall' ' 
be removed-at the conclusion of the forest operation requiring its use.

(H) Exploration for and production of geothe-rmal, gas, oil, and other associated hydrocarbons,' ' including the placement and operaiion of compressors, separators and other custgma_ry -
producti6n equipment for an individual well adjacent to the well head as defined in ORS

Chapters 5I7 and 520.

(L) Disposal site for solid waste that has been ordered established by the. Environmental Quality, ' Corirmission under ORS 459.049, together with the equipment, facilities or buildings
necessary for its operation. Such site designation shall require owner consent.

(M) Temporary forest labor camps, without any permanent structures, limited to the duration of
the forest operation requiring the use.

(O) Private fee hunting er-ad fiee fishing operations without any accommodations.

(Q) Destination resorts pursuant to ORS 197.435 to I97.46*467-and upon compliance with
Statewide Planning Goal 8.

177.035. USES SUBJECT TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW. The following uses are

permitted, subject to review and approval under.the prescriptive standards specified herein, the-
^thegeneralsitingstandardsfordwellingsandstructuresunder

Section"l77.080, the fire siting standards for dwellings and structures under 177.090, and as may
otherwise be indicated by federal, state and local permits or regulatioflS. lAmended by ordinance ll-03

and 23-0ll

(A) Single-family dwelling, as authorized under Section 177.070 of this ordinance and such' 
accSrrory buildings ana uses as are normally associated with a single-family dwelling.

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02

il



ATTACHMENT C

(3) The applieant agrees te renew the perrnit every trve ye*rs'

\-/ 
ease ei an existing building eenve*ed te a iemper?ry residential use; shall be

rcmevea+er

@

(B) A taw ttv est
N215f,55:
Of ff tfre county determin to be altered.resto

(a) Uas, or formertv

G) Intact extedor wa

(iii) Interior wir
(iv) A heating svste

fl five vears Uefor iott Pt
G) @waserecteduoonorfi

subiect to propenv t

0l eive vears before tne

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

fiil fne aate ttrat tne Awe
subiect to prooerry

(2t For replacement of a uudcrlbisscetiou

ft) fne rentacemen

G

f+l tf an apnticant is er
(A fne aerurrea reol@

final. t,qmended by O

1Bq) A lawfully established dwelling that is destroyed by wildfire may be replaced within 60

months when:

(1) The county finds, based on substantial evidence, that th9 qy..!ilg.to.be replaced
containedihoseitemslistedatsubsection@.ForthepurposeS
of this subsection, substantial evidence includes, but is not limited to, county assessor

data.

(2) The property owner of the record at the time of the wildfire may reside on lhe subject
prop"tty in Ln existing building, tent, travel trailer, yud, recreational vehicle, or similar

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



accommodation unit replacement has been completed or the time for replacement has

expired. [Amended by ordinance 23-011

(trD) Wind energy systems utilizing a tower and meteorological.towers..outside of an adopted
'-- *Uu" gi;fih b"oundary that are ndt 

"ommercial 
power genglating facilities that would

ittii"'itower1g itrat iequires lighting or that reqrlilgq modificatibn to the leigfrt orJyPe.gl
construction st#dards d6scribedin S6ction 112.i35(c)(1), as provided in Sections ll2.l35
and 112.1 37. lnmenoed by ortlinance 09-061

177.040. CONDITIONAL USES. The following conditional uses may be allowed subject to

"o-priu"."*ithth.pio"id*.'andcriteriaunderchapter119,theec+ar4@ffi5oJh. g"""ruf '.iting standards for d_wel]in_gq an-d structures under I77 .080,1he fire siting

ffir foidwellingr uild structures under I7L090, applicable state and federal regulations,

and other specific criteria aS may be indicated. larnentteo byordinance 11-031

ATTACHMENT C

(A) Home subject to

15.448

(r) @ be is operated by a resident or emplovee of a res of
the property on which the business is located;

(Z) ft shaff emofov on t Nno more than five full or part-time persons are-em@b
th€$r*siffo.ss;

(:) ItshaUlc-sBcrafed Msubstantially in:

(a)_{#i+hin tlhe dwelling; or

@) eQther buildings normally associated with the uses permitted in the zone in which
the property is located;-anel

(4) +he-bi*siness-vi+llt shall not interfere with

(Zt The existence of ho
l.amenaeA nVOrAitlance24.0?

(B) resources, as defined in ORS Chapter
(}

. b', separators and
o te and mineral

@I,-an+@).
(C) Permanent facility for the primary proce

.

ssing of forest products@

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



(F) Disposal site for solid waste approved by the governing body of a city or county^o] both and

for wtrich the Department of Environmental Qlality has granted a permit under ORS-iig.iiS, 
tieethei with equipment, facilities oi buil-dings necessaryfor itloperation. Such

site designaTion shall teq,rir^e owner consent
177,050(r\); (B); and (D).

ATTACHMENT C

(D)Permanentloggingequipmentrepairandstoragei€nS
@

(E) Log scaling and weigh
@).

I not he nrovided tcecfric service hook-uns sha
ectrical service mav be orovi< ed to vurts allowed lrat e

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

nossible.

nt

It

nfernz

fUt fne numUer of oro
(c -and

OrdinalcezL02l

(H) Public parks including only those uses specified under OAR 660-034-0035, or OAR 660-' ' 
034-0040, *hi"he,rerls applicable, strhieet te eemplianee with Seetiens 177,050(X); (B);
and{D).

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

and radio communication facilities and transmission towers, as0) Television, microwave
provided in Section ll2.l3

(J) Fire stations for rural fire
and{E.

(K) Commercial power generating facilities;"slEeet teeem.pl!.tnee :vitlteeetlens 177,950(A);

@)+nd{D).'An exJeption to-the statewide Forest Lands Planning Goal is required where

i",relopme.rt of th. po*e. generating facility removes more than 10 acres from use as a

commercial forest oPeration.

(l) Accommodations are limited to no more than 15 guest rooms as that term is defined in

the Oregon Structural Specialty Code;

(2) Only minor incidental and accessory retail sales are permitted;

(3) Accommodations are occupied temporarily fo.t the purpose gf h"."lilg.4ging gam.e bird\ / 
and big game hunting ,"uro.rr authorized 6y the Orbgon Fish and Wildlife Commission;

and

(4) Other conditions, as deemed appropriate.

(R) New electric transmission lines with right of way widthsof up to 100 feet as jPecified in' ORS 122.210. New distribution lines (i.g., gas,-oil, geothermal, telephone, fiber.optic
*Ut")*ittt tightt-of-way 50 feet or less in widttr.

an+@)h

(L) Aids to navigation and

@.
(M) Water intake facilities, related treatment facilities, stations, and distribution lines;

Q.Q Reservoirs and water€re.
(O) Firearms training facility as DfgYr.ded tn ORS I

'

(P) Cemeteries; subieet-te eenrplianee rvith seetiens 177'050(r\); (B); md (D).

(a) Private seasonal accommodations for fee hunting operations, subject to compliance with
S€€ti€@andthe

requirements

(S) Temporary asphalt and concrete batch AS uses to specific highway Projects;

(T) Expansion of existing
(EE.

(U)Thefollowingtransportationimprovementsmaybeestablished@
):

(1) Construction of additional passing and-travel lanes requiring the acquisition of right of
way but not resulting in the creation of new land parcels.

(2) Reconstruction or modification of public roads_and highways involving the removal or

displacement of buildings but not iesulting in the creation of new land parcels.

(3) Improvement of public road and highway related facilities, such as maintenance yards,

weigh stations and rest areas, where additional property or right of way is required but
not iesulting in the creation of new land parcels.

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

(4) Accessory transportation improvements for an authorized land use to provide safe and

efficient access 
^to the use. Such accessory transportation improvements are subject to

the same requirements applicable to the land use to which they are accessory;

(5) Channelization;
(6) Realignment of roads;

(7) Replacement of an intersection with an interchange;

(8) Continuous median turn lane;

(e) New access roads or
road is to

uce local access to or local traffic on a state These roads shall be limited
be limited to rural needs orto two travel lanes. Private access and intersections

provide adequate emergency access.

(10) Bikeways, footpaths, and recreation trails not otherwise allowed as a modification or
part of an existing road;

(1 1)Park and ride lots;
( I 2) Railroad mainlines and branchlines;

(13) Pipelines;
(1 4) Navigation channels;
(15)Replacement of docks and other facilities without significantly increasing the capacity

of those facilities;
(16) Expansions or alterations of public use airports that do not permit service to a larger

class of airplanes; and

(17)Transportation facilities, services andjmprovements other than those listed in this
' 'section that serve local travel needs. The travel capacity and performanee

rt"ria";Art*""+.+".*+"*of facilities and improverirenti serving local travel needs shall

ffit"O to that necessary to support rural iand uses identified in the acknowledged
comprehensive plan or to provide adequate emergency access.

(V) Private accommodations for fishing occrlpig{-on a.' 
with Oan 00O-O0O-OOZ9.
and the following requirements:
(1) Accommodations limited to no more than 15 guest rooms as that term is defined in the

Oregon Structural SpecialtY Code;

(2) Only minor incidental and accessory retail sales are permitted;

(3) Accommodations occupied temporarily fo1 the p_t11pose of fishing during fishing
seasons authorized by fhe oregon Fish and wildlife commission;

(4) Accommodations must be located within 114 mile of fish bearing Class I waters; and

(5) A governing body may impose other appropriate conditions.

(W) Forest management research and experimentation facilities as defined. by ORS 526.2I5 or, ' where u"..tJory to forest sps131i6ns; subieet te eemplia
and{D).

(X) Youth camp. A youth camp may be established pursuant to the standards and limitations in, ' 
OAR 660-006-0031 and!&LZ[]1.a57. Changes to or expansions of y-o_uth camps
established prior to Junel4-;200-0 shall be subject to the provisions of ORS 215.130. [Amentred

by Ordinances 0l-10 and 11-031

(Y) Wind energy systems utilizing a tower and meteorological towers within an adopted urban' growth Uounddry up to 100 feet in height that are not commercial power generating
facilities, as provided in Sections Il2.I35 and I12.I37. lAmendcd by onlinance 0e-061

temporary basis, ect to compliance

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

CD The hardshio is certi

(3) The appticant ag

O as useO in ttris sectl
an aged or innrm perso

lv-Ordlmncc2A0Zl

written statement

with the OI contract
the land owner which recognizes the rights
forest consistent with the Forest

(B) Land divisions s less than 80 acres in size may only be ved for uses

listed in
provided that those uses have been

pursuant to

177.050. GENERAL REVIEW STANDARDS [OAR 660-006-0025(5) angjol. To ens.ure

.o-putiUitity with farming and forest activities, thb Planning Director or hearings body shall

deteimine tfiat the proposed use meets the following requirements:

(A) The proposed use will not force a significant change in, or significantly increase the cost of,, 
a"cept"d farming or forest practices on agriculture or forest lands;

(B) The proposed use will not_significantly increase fire hazard or significantly increase fire
suppresslon costs or significlntly increase risks to fire suppression personnel;

(c)

ofadj
Practi

(D) All other requirements contained in the Comprehensive_Plan or implementing ordinances'' ' including brit not limited to regulations which apply to flood hazard areas, development
within tlie Willamette River Gieenway, development in forested areas or development in
significant resource areas, such as riparian or big game habitat'

177.060. LAND DIVISION REQUIREMENTS. In the TCZoning District, the following
standards shall apply:

(A) The minimum lot orpareel size is 80 acres; or

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02

r77.050 [oAR 660-006-0026(2)(a)l Such divisions



shall create a parcel that is the minimum size necessary-for the use.. Required building. 
.

r"iUu.t r for tfiese parcels will be determined on a_case-by-case !a.s!s thrgug_[tle conditional

;il;"* and miy vary from those_ required unper. Seclio,l 177.140 and 112.430(C) based

rpiiitt.-rp".in" 
"J. 

u"itrori zedby the lbnd use decision. The landowner of a parcel created

"'n4.. 
this subsection shall provide 

"evidence that arestrictive covenant has been recorded with
;5f a";ty Clerk's Offrce for the subject property. The restlctive covenant shall prohibit the

landorvnei and the landowner's succdssor''s in inierest from further dividing the parcel. The

restrictive covenant shall be irrevocable unless a statement of release is signed by the Polk

C;;"t planning Director indicating that the comprehensive plan designation is no.longer

"ppfriUf"-to 
thJparcel and that thiproperty is no^ longer subiect to Oregon Statewide Planning

d.iui + (fotest Ldnds). The restrictive iovenant shall also be irrevocable unless the land

division is subsequently authorizedby law or by change in Statewide Goal 4' The property.

owner shall also *.ord a deed restriciion in the office-of ttre Polk County Clerk as required by

Section 177.120.

ATTACHMENT C

mg

not be larger than five acres, except as necessary to recognize

roads or streams, in which case the parcel shall not be larger than

(c)

177,129,

(l) The oarcel created shall
physical factors such as

ten (10) acres: and

(l)Theremaininfparcellhaldoes not containingthe.dwelling; it lgt entitled to a dwelling
' :'unless 

subseqirently affiorized by law or goal ana tne parcet eitner

(a) Meets the minimum tand

(D) A land division of a lot or parcel that contains two or more Qwgqjngs subject to the following
requirements [Oi\R 660-006-0026(2)(d) and ORS 2 1 5. 7 80(2XO] :

Attacltment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

(1) At least two dwellings larnf,rlly existed on the lot or parcel prior to November 4,1993l,

(2) Each dwelling complies with the criteria for a replacement dwelling under Section

177.035(e_B);

(3) Except for one lot or parcel, each lot or parcel created under this section is between two

and five acres in size;

(4) At least one dwelling is located on each lot or parcel created under this section; and

(s)

restrictive covenant also
authorized by law or bY change in
restriction in the office of the Polk

Goal4. The property owner
County Clerk as required bY

VIS1ON IS SU

shall also record a
Section 177.120.

(6) A lot or parcel may not be divided under this section if an existing dwelling on the lot or
parcel was approved under:

(a) A statute, an administrative rule or a land_use regYJation as defined in ORS 197.0I5\--l 
ifiuti.qui..d removal of the dwelling or that pro-hibited subsequent division of the lot
or parcel; or

(b) A farm use zone provision that allowed both farm and forest uses in a mixed farm

and forest use zone under Goal 4 (Forest Lands). [Amended by ordinance l1-031

(E) A land division to facilitate a forest practice as defined in ORS 527 .620 that results in a parcel

that does not meet the minimum area requirement of subsection 177 .060(4). IOAR 660-006-

0026(2)(c) The shall that
present an

the minimum parcel stze
pursuant to thisSfor+he-zene in order to conduct the forest practice

(1) SeallArqnot be eligible for siting a new dwelling;

(2) Shn+Mgnot serve as the justification for the siting of a future dwelling on other parcels;

(3 4)ShaltMav-not result in a parcel of less than 35 acres, untess tne purpose of m

drvision rslqexeept:
(a) acilitate an exchange of lands involving

a govemmental agencY, or

(b) Where the purpese ef the land divisiel is te nAllow transactions in which at least one

participantis a p"rson with a cumulative ownership of at least 2,000 acres of
forestland in Ore gon=;-and

(4-!)If associated with the creation of a parcel where a dwelling is involved, shall not result in a' -parcel less than the minimum parcel size of the zone.

Attachnrent C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

section.

(F) z\ pa*itien plat shall be filed rvithin twe years fi.om the effeetive date:ef Prelimina?'a-,

*e+pprevatl
OR,S

TC zone an urban
be subject to the following

criteria:

(1) The partition occurs along the urban growth boundary; and

(2) If the parcel contains a dwelling, the parcel must be large enough to support continued

residential use;

(3) If the parcel does not contain a dwelling, the parcel:

(a) Is not eligible for a dwelling, except as authorized by oRS 195.120;

(b) May not be considered in approving or denying an application for siting any other

dwelling; and

(c) May not be considered in approving or redesignation or rezoning of forestlands
,rnde, the acknowledged cornpreheisive plan and land use regulations, except for a
redesignation orueroiing to allow a public park, open space or other natural
resource use.

(4) The owner of the parcel not containing.a dwelling shall record with the County Clerk\ / 
an irrevocable dedd restriction prohibi-ting the owner and all successors in interest from
pursuing a cause of action or claim of relief alleging injury^frorn farming or forest

irracticei for which a claim or action is not allowed under ORS 30.93 6 ot 30.937 .

[Amended by Ordinance l9-0Il

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

177.070. STANDARDS FOR DWELLINGS. Dwellings are authorized in the Timber

bonr..uutio n ZoningDistrict, subject to the siting requirernents under Section 177.080 and

111 .090 of the Ordinance, and the following criteria: lAmcnded by ordinance 23-01|

(A)SmallTract,Lot-of-RecordDwelling[oAR660-006-00zz(t)@'' -' |:Jjgsl. a dwelling may be authorlzed on a lot-of-record. To qualif' as a lot-of-record,
tfie parcet must meet the following criteria:
(1) The la( !r parcel on wtrich tfre aygtting wffi was lawfully created and was\-/ 

acqu-recl and own er as defined in subsect

thirscetioq
@l-sSince prior to January 1, 1985lor
(U) devise or bY intestate

secessron froni a pe.sbn #i*wno-dcquired and had owned continuously the lof !r
lar',*t+tly-ereate+ parcel since prior to January 1, 1985'

@
(23)The tract on which the dwelli

vaean+;

(a3) +fl+Ihe lot or parcel on which the dwelling wil_l be.sited was paft of a tract existing-on, :'No:vember 
4,'I9g3,no dwelling exists on another lot or parcel that was part of that

tract;,
((

(S) fne Awemng must U

The+rae+ wl 1,500 a

aw son-in-law- rbrother-in - sister. sister-in-

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02

AS by ORS 368.001, that provides or will provide access to the



ATTACHMENT C

subject tract @{ete The road shall be maintained and either paved or surfaced with
rockJhe+oa#and shall not be;

GtaAll$-Bureau of Land Management road.;pt

@@U.S.ForestServiceroadunlesstheroadis.pavedtoa:minimum 
width of l8 feEi, there is at least one defined lane in each direction

and a maintenance agreernent exists between the U.S. Forest Service and

landowners adjacent to the road, Polk County, or a state agency')

and
fa

(6)

(7) Where
tract, the
consolidated into a

(e)

(2) The tract is

meet a$eage

(8) Authorizationto establish a single-family dwelling under the provisions of this\ / 
subsection may be transferred by a p"rsott who hai qualified under this subsection to

any other person after the effective date of the decision.

;

giandehild ef ihe errner er a business entity 
^ewned 

by any ene er a eembinatien of
@

(B) Large Tract Forest Land Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(?) and (7$)and4Bs2]57a01. a
' ' d*""lling may be authorized on altictthat does not contain a meets the

following criteria:
(1) The tract is at least 160 sautiguaus acres. in size. A.tract shall not be considered to

consist of less than 160 acres Uecause it is crossed by a public road or a waterway; or,

least 200 acres in

A restrrctron lbefil tracts that are to
of this subsection, pursuant to the following provisions:

(a) The applicant shall provide evidence that the covenants, conditions and restrictions
form iilopted as "Eihibit l1A" to OAR 660-006 has been recorded with the County
Clerk of the county or counties where the property subject to the covenants,
conditions and restrictions is located.

(b) The covenants, conditions and restrictions are irrevocable, unless a statement of
release is signed by an authorized representative of the cognty or.counties.where
the property subje6t to the covenants, conditions and restrictions is located.

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENTC

(c) Enforcement of the covenants, conditions_and restrictions may be undertaken by
the Department of Land Conservation and Development or by the county or.
counties where the property subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions is
located.

(d) Failure to follow the requirements of this section shall not affect therralidity of the

transfer of property or the legal remedies available to the buyers of the propefty
v/hi€hthalis sriU;eit to the cdvenants, conditions and restrictions required by this
section.

(e) The Planning Director shall maintain a copy of the covenants, conditions and

restrictions frled in the County deed records pursuant to this section and a map-or

other record depicting tracts wtrictr do not qualify for a siting of a dwelling under

the covenants, ionditions and restrictions filed in the county deed records pursuant

to this section The map or other record required by this section shall be readily
available to the public in the Planning Division office.

(C) Small Tract "Ternplate" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(3) and ORS2-1IJ50]. A dwelling
may be authorized on a tra+lofsruarscl that meets the following criteria:

(1) The tract is less than 60 acres in size;

(2) The tract meets one of the following:
(a)

If

exist on(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to
the other lots or parcels; or

(b) The +rae+lql_or_Bars€1 is prcdomrnateblcomposed of soils that are capable of
@ toT cu. ft. pe-r acreJ€IJ€alof wood fiber if:
(i)

(i)

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels.

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January I,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; or

(c) The traet tBtoruarqalis Bredomualeblcomposed of soils that are.capable of
aflftla+lfproducing 0 to 49 cu. fl. per acre p€r y-AaI of wood flber ll:

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

(3)

(4) tract i+ae*ulieet
+o and Section

) of this Ordinance
mgt

(S) fne tot or parcel willbesitedwasl eslablished

(s0)

(61) Lots or parcels within urban grgwth boundaries llaynot be used to satisff the' :- 
eligibili^ty requirements undei this subsections 177$70@).

(7&) Any property line adjustment !o tlre !o! gl narcel complied with the applicable property
- line adjustment provisions in ORS 92.192'

(S!) Any property line adjustment to the lot or parcel after January 1,2019, did not have the
' :' 

eff6c^t ofquutiE'ing t"he lot or parcel for a dwelling under this section; and

(9lO)If the lot or parcel on which the dwelling will.be sited. was.pu+.9f atract on January 1,
- -TOig,no aw6tting existed on the tract onlhat date, and no dwelling exists or has been

approved on anot-h"r lot or parcel that was part of the tract.

singte-famtty dw
+;xz+;t+
1, No more than ene ether drvelling exists or has been appreved on

and2a4A

that existed on January 1,1993,(i) All or part of at least 1 1 other lots or parcels
are wifhin a 160 acre square centered on the

1

(D) Large Tract "Template" Dwelling IOAR 660-006-0027(5) aud !RS2L5J50]. A dwelling' ' maf Ue authorized- on a tract that meets the following criteria:

(1) The tract is 60 acres or larger in size;

(2) The tract meets one of the following:
(a) The trae{otlarjareql is prgdo+rnatel+ composed of soils that are c_1nab.l9 of

asnuattjri;ffig more than 85 cffi. per acre psr-year of wood fiber if:

center ofthe subject tract'

(ii) At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist on
the other lots or parcels; or

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



(b) The traeEbfforcarqe! isgcdqml+afely composed of soils that are capable of
a"n"aUfp 

"g 
SO toTs cu-fi. pff acre B€r-yeat of wood fiber if:

ATTACHMENT C

parcel s that existed on January 1,

on the center ofthe subject Iract=
(i) All or part of at least seven (7) other lots or

1993, are within a 160 acre square centered

; and

(iD At least three (3) dwellings existed on January 1,1993 and continue to exist on

the other lots or parcels; or

(c) The trae{oloruarcsl is predoqrnalteblcomposed ofsoils that are.gapable of
annually pffig O to a9 culf, peracre per_y-ear of wood fiber if:

(i) All or part of at least three (3) other_lots or parcels that existed on January I 
'

Igg3 , ire within a 160 acre 
'centered 

on the center of the subj ect tract'

be made by ereating a 160 aere reeta*rgle that is one mile leng and"ene gtlarter

mite-wide*eree<
; and

(iD At least three (3) dwellings existed on January l, 1993 and continue to exist on

the other lots or parcels; and,

(3)

tins a 160-acre rectansle that is one mi

s section. "c€n(er-ef thc-su
fowever, one of tne
I or stream as the tract

traet

(4tr)

(50)

The-+rae+

Tthe tractis-so#stllieet
deed re

177.070(B)(2) of this Ordinance
mcI.

f7) fire tot or parce me

(6!) Lots or parcels within urban growth boundaries may not be used to satis$ the eligibility' -- requirements under

(+g Any properly line adjustment to the lot or parcel complied with the applicable
property line adjustment provisions in ORS 92.192.

Attachment C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

(s1Q) Any property line adjustment to the lot or.par.cel after_JanuafY I,2019, did not have
'--ih. effdct'of qrruii4ri.rg the lot or parcel for a dwelling under this section; and

(911) If the lot or parcel on which the dwelling will be sited was pa.ry. of a tract on January
'- -i ,20;lg,no dweiling existed on the tract on lhat date, qnd no dwelling exists or has

been approved on another lot or parcel that was part of the tract.

ww,

met. IAmended by

(a) In existence befu

GL) Thelotoroarcelisw @
UL

g)Lhc-exislirls sitrsle-falallv d\ryalins ls-oeaulic{bY t@
(g) The new single-fami the owner or a relative;

Attaclrnrent C ofOrdinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

((

I77.I20. NON.REMONSTRANCE DEED RESTRICTION. PUTSUANt tO OAR 660-006-

0026(6) and OAR 660-006-0029(4!)(e),for any dwelling, residential facility, private park,

."r.ruoi. or water impoundment, home occupaiion, or private fiqttiry or hunting
accommodations appioved under sections li7.035,177.0!0, and 117.010, and partitions
approved under su6iections 1 77. 060(B)19*eXD-an+€), the. landowner for the property

rflitt U. required to sign and record adi:ed resiriction binding the landowner and the landowner's
successorsin interestiprohibiting them from pursuing a claim for reliefor cause ofaction
uif"ging injury from farmi.rg or iot"st practices for which no action or claim is allowed under

ORS 30.93 6 to 30.937. [Amentierl by ordinance l1-031

I77.2I0. PERIOD OF VALIDITY FOR RESIDENTIAL USES.

Gl fne appticant mates a

@

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02



ATTACHMENT C

I

Ordinance-21421

177.22O.PERIOD OF VALIDITY FOR NON-RESIDENTIAL DISCRETIONARY USES'

l"oAR 660-033-0140]

(A) A discretionary decision, except for a land division, shall be valid for two (2) years t",lJl'' ' effective date otttte land use d^ecision. An extension of the validity period shall extend the

validity period for one (1) additional year, if:
(1) The applicant makes a written request for an extension of the development approval

validity period;
(2) The written request is submitted to the Polk County PlanningDivision, on the form\-/ 

piovided bi tdFtiling oiuirion, prior to the expiration ofthe approval period;

(:; the applicant states the reasons that prevent.d. th." applicant from beginning or

continuing development with the approval period;

(4) The applicant states the reasons that prevented the applicant nop beqi$ing or\'/ 
"otttiriril.rg 

A"""l"pt""rrduring the approval periodTor reasons for which the applicant

was not responsible.

(B) The planning Director may authorize additional one-year extensions where the applicable

criteria for the aecislon nalre not changed. Approval of an extension granted under this

section is an administrative decision, ii not uiitta use decision as described in ORS 197'015

;;alsil *bj";t6 
"pp"al 

as a landuse decision. IOAR 660-033-0140(1) through (4)]

Attachment C of Ordinance 24-02




